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In the Matter of 

Albuquerque Bernalillo County 
V/ater Utility Authority, 

a New l\.'lexico political subdivision, 

Respondent 

NPDES No. NM0022250 

§ Docket No. CWA-06-2015-1777 
§ 
§ Proceeding to Assess a Class lJ 
~ Civil Penalty under Section 309(g) 
§ of the Clean Water Act 
§ 
§ AD:vtl"'lSTRATIVE COMPLAINT 
§ 
§ 

I. f')tatutory_Authoritv 

This Complaint is is.'lucd under the authority vested in the Administrator or the 

United States hnvironmcntal Protection Agency ("EPA') by Section 309(g) of the Clean Water 

Act ("Act"), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g). The Administrator of EPA delegated the authority to issue 

this Complaint to the Rcgiomli Administrator of EPA Region 6, who delegated this authority to 

the Director of the Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division of EPA Region 6 

("Complainant"). This Class II Administrative Complaint is issued in accordance ~~ith the 

"Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and 

the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits," including rules related to administrative 

proceedings not governed by Section 554 of the Administrative Procedures Act, 40 C.P.R. 

§§ 22.50 through 22.52. 

Based on the ~iJ!Iowing Findings, Complainant finds thnt Respondent has violated the Act 

and the regulations promulgated under the Act and should be ordered to pay a civil penalty. 
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II. Findings of f_~WU!!Jd Conclusion_~ _QL!,._?W 

1. Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Utility Authority ("Respondent") is a politkal 

sqbdivision of the State of New Mexico, and as such, Respondent is a "person,'' as that term is 

defined at Section 502(5) of the Act, 33 U.S.C:. § 1362(5), and 40 C:.F.R. § 122.2. 

2. At all relevant times, Respondent owned or operated a wastewater treatment plant 

located on Secund Street in the City of Albuquerque, Bernalillo County, New Mexico 

("facility"), and was therefore an "owner or operator" within the meaning of 40 C.P.R.§ 122.2. 

3. At all relevant times, the facility acted as 3 "point source" of a "discharge" of 

''pollutants" with its municipal wastewater to the reccivi11g waters of the Rio Grande m 

Segment 20.6.4.1 05 of the Rio Grande Basin, which is considered a "water of the United States" 

within the meaning orS<.!ction 502 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362, and 40 C.F.R. 9 122.2. 

4. Because Respondent owned or operated a facility that acted as a point source of 

discharges of pollutants to waters of the Cnited States, Respondent and the facility were subject 

to the Act and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") program. 

5. L:ndcr Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. ~ 1311, it is unlawful for any person to 

discharge any pollutant from a point source to waters of the United States, except with thu 

authorization of, and in compliance witb, an NPDES permit issued pursuant to Section 402 ofthc 

Act, 33 U.S.C. ~ 1142. 
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6. S~ction 402(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a). provides that the Administrator of 

EPA may issue permits under the NPDES program for the disclwrge of pollutants fi·om point 

sources to waters of the t.:nitcd States. Any such discharge is sub_icct to the specific terms and 

conditions prescribed in the applicabk permit. 

7. Respondent applied for and was issued NPDES Permit No. NM0022250 ("permit") 

under Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C § 1342, which became effective on October I, 2012. 

At all relevant times, Respondent was authorized to discharge pollutants hom the facility to 

waters of the United States only in compliance with tllG specific terms and conditions of the 

permit. 

8. Part I of the permit requires Respondent to sample and test its cflluent and monitor its 

compliance with permit conditions according to specific proCedures, in order to determine the 

L1eility's compliance or non-compliance with the permit and applicable regulations. It also 

requires Respondent to file with EPA certified Discharge :vfonitoring Reports ("DMRs") of the 

results of monitoring, <ind Non~Compliancc Reports V•ihen appropriate. 

9. Part 1./\ of the permit places certain limitations on the quality and quantity of c111ucnt 

discharged by Respondent. The relevant discharge limitation~ are specified in Attachment A. 

10. Certified DMRs filed by Respondent witlJ EPA in compliance with the permit show 

discharges of pollutants from the facility that exceed the permrtted effluent limitations 

established in Part 1./\ of'1he permit, as specified in Attachment B. 



Docket No. CW ;\-06-20 I 5-1777 
Page 4 

11. Sanitary Sewer Overflow ("SSO") bypass reports filed by Respondent \Vitb EPA in 

compliance with the permit show unauthorized discharges. Tl1C' ummthorizcd discharges arc 

specified in Attachment C. 

12. On May 17, 2011, EPA issued Administrative Order number C'VlA-06-20 11-1 777 to 

Respondent citing CXGcedances of effluent limitations, unauthorized dischargcs, and failure to 

report parameters. 1-lowcvcr, DMRs submitted by Respondent indicate that violations are 

continuing to occur. The Administrative Order also cites a sulfur dioxide indicator failure which 

led to a fish kill. Respondent failed to report the fish kill within twenty-four (24) hours as 

required by the permit. 

1.1. On June 4, 2013, EPA issued Administrative Order Docket :Numbcr 

CWA-06-2013-1807 to Respondent citing cxcccdanccs of effluent limitations. The 

Administrative Order requires that Respondent take corrective action to eliminate and prevent a 

recurrence of permit violations; however, the UMRs submitted by Respondent indicate that 

violations are continuing to occur. 

14 On July 22. 2014. EPA issued AdmiuistrHtive Order Docket Number 

CWA-06-2014-1817 to Respondent citing ex<:eedanecs of cfnuent limitations and unauthorized 

diselwrges. Tbc Administrative Order requires that Respondent take corrective action to 

eliminate and prevent" recurrence of permit violatious; however, DMRs illh.i non-compliance 

repm1s submitted by Respondent indicate that violations me continuing to occur. 
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15. On March 24, 2015, EPA issued Administrative Order Docket Number 

CWA-06-2015-1733 to Respondent citing exccedances of effluent limitations and unauthorized 

discharges. The Administrative Order require::; that Respondent take corrective action to 

eliminale and prevent 1\.:currcncc of permit violations. 

16. On March 25, 2015, EPA issued Administrative Order Do(.;kct Number 

CWA-06-2015-1752 to Respondent citing a bypass at the facility. According to Respondent's 

non-compliance report dated March 3, 2015, Respondent discharged approximately 6 million 

gallons of primary clarifier effluent into the Rio Grande due to a power spike. 

17. Each violation or the conditions of the permit or regulations described above is a 

violation of Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. Also, each unauthorized discharge is a 

violation of Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 131 I. 

18. Under Section 309(g)(2)(B) of' the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(B), Respondent is 

liable for a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed $16,000 per day for each day during which a 

violation continues, up to a maximum of $187,500.00. ~ 

19. l~PA has notified the New Mexico L:nvironmcnt Department of the issuance of this 

Complaint and has ::tfforded the State an opportunity to consult with EPA regarding the 

"Viol<Jtions which occurred <1fier January 12, 2009 through Deccmbn 6, 2013, are subject to penalties not \<l exceed 
$16,000 per d;1y for each day during which a violi"lti<'ll continues, up to a 111aximum of $177,500. Violations 
occurring <~l1c1 December 6, 20 13 arc subject lo $16,000 per day for each day du1·ing which a vio ln tion continw:~~. up 
to a lll(lXimum of$187,500. 78 Fed. Reg. 66647 (D~.::cembcr6, 2013). 
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assessment of an administrative penalty against Respondent as required by Section 109(g)(I) of 

the Act, 33 O.S.C. § 1319(g)(l). 

20. FPA has notified the public of the filing of this Complaint and has afforded the 

public thirty (30) clays in which to comment on the Complaint and on the proposed penalty as 

required by ScctJOn 309(g)(4)(A) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. ~ l319(g)(4)(A). At the expiration of the 

notice period, EPA will consider any comments filed by tbe public. 

III. Proposed Penalty 

21. Based on 1hc foregoing Findings, and pursuant to the authority of Sections 309(g)(l) 

and (g)(2)(B) of the Acl, JJ LI.S.C. §§ 1 3 19(g)(l) and (g)(2)(B), EPA Region (i hereby proposes 

to assess ago.inst Respondent a penalty of one hundred thirty-four thousand dollars 

($134,11011.00). 

22. The proposed penalty amount was determined based on the statutory factors 

specified m Section 309(g)(3), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(3), which includes such factors as the nature, 

circumstances, extent and gravity of the violations, economic benefits, if any, prior history of 

such violatwn::., 1f any, dcgrcc of culpability, and such matters as JUstice nwy require. 

23. Complainant has specified that the administrative procedures specified in 40 C.F.R. 

Part 22, Subpart I, shall apply to this case, and the administrative proceedings shnll not be 

governed by Section 554 of the Administrative Practice Act. However, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 

§ 22.42(b), Respondent has a right to elect a hearing on the record in accordance with 5 U.S. C. 
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§ 554, and Respondent wai vcs this right unless Respondent in its answer requests a hearing in 

(lCcordancc with 5 U.S.C. 9 554. 

24. Ir Respondent wishes to deny or explain any material allegation listed in the above 

Findings or to contest the amount of the penalty proposed, Respondent must file an Answer to 

this Complaint within thirty (30) days after scrvice of this Complaint whether or not Respondent 

requests a hearing as discussed below. 

25. The requirements lOr such an Answer are set fmih at 40 C.F.R § 22.15 

(copy enclosed). Failure to file an Answer to this Complaint \Vi thin thirty (30) days of service of 

the Complaint shall constitute an admission of all fads alleged in the Complaint and a waiver of 

the right to hearing. Failure to deny or contest any individual material allegation contained in the 

Complaint will constitute an admission as to that finding or conclusion under 40 C.F.R. 

~ 22.15(d). 

26. If Respondent docs not file an Answer to this Complaint within thirty (30) days afler 

service of 1his Complaint a Default Order mav be issll(~d against Rcspondcn1 pursuant to 

40 C.F.R. § 22.17. A Dei~tult Order, if issued, would constitute a Jinding of liability, and could 

make the full amount of' the penalty proposed in this Complaint due and payable by Respondent 

without further proceedings thirty (30) days ilftcr a Final Default Orckr is issued. 
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27. Respondent must send its Answer to this Complaint, including any request for 

hearing, and all other pleadings to: 

Regional Hearing Clerk (6RC-D) 
U.S. EPA. Region 6 
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dallas, TX 75202-2733 · 

Respondent sha!l also send a copy of its Answer to this Complaint to the follow·ing EPA attorney 

assigned to this case: 

Ellen-Chang-Vaughan (GRC-EW) 
U.S. EPA, Region 6 
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dalla,, TX 75202-2733 

28. The Answer must be signed by Respondent, Respondent's counsel, oo other 

representative on behalf of Respondent and must contain all information required by 40 C.F R. 

§§ 22.05 and 22.15, including the name, address, and telephone number of Respondent and 

Respondent's counsel. All other pleadings must he similarly signed and filed. 

V. Notice ofOpportunitv to Request a HcariJJ.g 

29. Respondent may request a hearing to contest any material allegation contained in this 

Complaint_ or tn contest the nppropriateness of the c1mnun1 nf'thc proposed pena11v. pursuant to 

Section 309(g) of the Act, 3.1 (J.S.C. § 1319(g). The procedures for hetmngs arc set out at 

40 C.F.R. Part 22, with supplemental rules at 40 C.F.R. * 22.38. 
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30. An)' request for hearing should btl induded in Respondent's Answer to this 

Complaint; however, as discussed above, Respondent must file an Answer meeting the 

requirements of 40 C.F.R. 9 22.15 ill order to preserve the right to a hearing or to pursue other 

relic!: 

31. Should a hearing be requested, members of the public who commented on the 

issuance of the Complaint Juring the public comment period will have a right to be heard and to 

present evidence at such hearing under Section 309(g)(4)(B) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 1319(g)(4)(B). 

32. FPA encourages all parties against whom civil penalties are proposed to pursue the 

possibility of settlement through informal n1cctings with EPA. Regardless of whether a formal 

hearing is requested, Respondent may confer informally with EPA about the alleged violations or 

the amount of the proposed penalty. Respondent may wish to appear at any informal conference 

or formal hearing personally, by counsel or other representative, or both. To request an informal 

conference on the matters descrihcd in this Complaint. please contact Robert Houston. of my 

staff, at (214) 665-8565. 

33. If this action is scltlcd without a formal hearing and issuance of an opinion by the 

Presiding Officer pursuant to 40 C.F.R. * 22.27, this action will he concluded by issuance of a 

Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO'"J pursuant to 40 C.F.R. ~ 22.18(b ). The issuance 
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of a CA.FO would waive Respondent's right to a hearing on any matter stipulated to therein or 

alleged in the Complaint. Any person who commented on this Complaint would he notified and 

given an additional thirty (30) days to petition EPA to set aside any such CAFO and to bold a 

hearing on the issues raised in the Complaint. Such a petition would be granted and a hearing 

held only if the evidence presented by the petitioner's comment was material and was not 

considered by EPA in the issuance of the CAFO. 

34. !<either assessment nor payment of a penalty in resolution of this action will affect 

Respondent's continuing obligation to comply with all requirements of the Act, the applicable 

regulations und permits. and any separate Compliance Order issued under Section 309(a) of the 

Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a), including one relating to the violations alleged herein. 

- cP .q IS 
Dme 

ompliance Assurance and 
Enforcement Division 
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CFR!JIJC:All·: OF SJ<.RVICJ; 

I certify that the foregoing Class li Administrative Complaint was sent to the follmving 

persons, in the manner specified, on the date below: 

Original hand-delivered: 

Copy by certified maiL 
return receipt requested: 

Copy hand-delivered: 

Dated: 
JIJN 1 0 1015 

Regionalllearing Clerk (6RC-D) 
U.S. FPA, Region 6 
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dallas. TX 75202-2733 

John M. ~tomp Ill, P.E. 
Chief Operating Officer, Water Utility Authority 
Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water lJtility Authority 
4201 Second Stn:ct SW 
Albuquerque, NM 87105 

Charles S. Leader, P.E. 
Manager, Plant Operations Division 
Albuqw:rquc Bernalillo County Watc:r Utility Authority 
4201 Second Street SW 
Albuqm:rquc, NM 87105 

Bruce Yurdin 
Acting Bureau Chief 
Surface Water Quulity Bureau 
New Mexico Environment Department 
P.O. Box 5469 
Santa Fe, l'\M 87502-5469 

Ellen Chang-Vaughan (6RC-EW) 


